QoNs, CITA portfolio

Budget Estimates, May 2006


Environment, Communications, Information Technology and the Arts Legislation Committee

2006-07 Budget Estimates Hearings

Questions on Notice

Communications, Information Technology and the Arts Portfolio

TUESDAY, 23 MAY 2006
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	83
	9
	Fielding
	Can I have a copy of all the research that you have done on internet filtering for pornography? That is just a request. Can I have that?

Ms Wright—Yes, I think we have constantly provided this committee with all the research that we have done.
	ACMA
	30/08/06

	84
	13
	Lundy
	Mr J Neil—If you go back to recommendation 2.9, I think you will find that there was a project undertaken

with Telstra to identify the worst performing exchanges. Fifty-four exchanges were identified using a set of

metrics which were agreed within the ACA. For Telstra, the work on those exchanges on remediation has been

completed. The work that Mr Shaw was referring to is a follow-up to a review of the network reliability

framework, which was looking at how we should approach exchange-level monitoring and remediation going forward. That is the work that is currently being undertaken.

Can you provide the committee with a list of those 54 exchanges? 
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	85
	13
	Lundy
	Thank you for that explanation. I want to go back to my question. If a customer wanted to find out if they were affected by one of these 480 cable runs, how do they do that? Can they call you?

Mr J Neil They could, but

Senator LUNDY Do you know which ones they are?

Mr J Neil Telstra would tell us the cable runs. We would have to go back to Telstra to find out whether a particular customer was on a particular cable run, which would be a bit of a bureaucratic exercise.

Senator LUNDY Should I put that question on notice to Telstra?

Mr J Neil Yes, you would have to put that on notice.

Senator LUNDY I will also put it on notice to you.
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	86
	13-14
	Lundy
	With respect to using the framework to identify the worst performing areas, which is the way you just described it, there is another recommendation in the government’s response to the RTI relating to the removal of six-by-16 pair gain systems. Can you report back on progress to date?

If you could provide it, I would like a full report. Can you confirm that they are removing these systems from the network?

Mr J Neil My understanding is that progressively, yes, they are - as they go faulty, or there is a problem.

Senator LUNDY My understanding of the recommendation is that it is stronger than that, that it does relate to a program for removal because of the potential inability, at any one time, of 10 customers on those

16-line systems not to be able to get a dial tone. That is just from memory, that it was a more proactive removal program.

Mr J Neil We can give you a brief on what the current situation is with that. I have not worked on this

specific area for some time, so my information may be a little bit out of date.
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	87
	14
	Lundy
	What about the recommendation relating to the requirement that the absurd level of 19.2 kilobits per second must be able to be achieved on Telstra’s dial-up network? Can you report back on progress to date in achieving that useless level?
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	88
	14
	Lundy
	Could ACMA also take on notice to provide a full update on the status of each of the recommendations, and the government’s acceptance of those recommendations, of the RTI.

Mr J Neil—Those for which ACMA is responsible-yes.
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	89
	14-15
	Lundy
	Thank you. I would also like to ask about ACMA’s role in supporting people with disabilities to access telecommunications services. I did have the opportunity to ask the department yesterday about the status of the various reports that are designed to assess what comes next for disability equipment in the telecommunications network. Can you outline ACMA’s role in supporting people with disabilities and their access to the telecommunications network?

I note that ACMA does have a role in providing a point of contact for people with disabilities. I will place on notice a question on what inquiries and complaints you receive.
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	90
	15
	Lundy
	Yes, Chair. I know Senator Conroy has some questions he would like to ask, but perhaps I could pursue some more questions with respect to the quality of telecommunications services, particularly in rural and regional Australia. What monitoring role does ACMA have over progress in government funded initiatives like the Broadband Connect program? Do you play any role in monitoring its roll-out or the quality of services provided under projects funded by Broadband Connect?

I want to know if there is any particular brief that you receive from the department about the standard of service that they require as a condition for funding projects under that scheme.
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	91
	16
	Lundy
	Have you corresponded formally with the ACCC on this matter? 

Could you provide the committee with the correspondence to the ACCC?

When would you have had discussions with them?

Could you provide the date that you communicated this to the ACCC?
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	92
	17
	Wortley
	Review of ID information collection of prepaid mobile phone customers—Have [submissions] been put on the website?
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	93
	17
	Lundy
	Going back to the issue of pair gains generally, on the ACMA website there is a section that relates to factors that affect internet service. Only once does it mention old pair gain systems in relation to a dial-up service. Why doesn’t your website state specifically that the presence of a RIM or a large pair gain service can directly inhibit access to ADSL? Do you think it should, given that not all of the 800,000 users are blocked but a large proportion of them are still blocked from getting ADSL?
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	94
	17-18
	Conroy
	I have a number of questions about the 2004-05 broadband quality of service report produced by ACMA. 

Did the report identify any users with access to wireless download speeds of 13 megabits?
	ACMA
	07/08/06

	95
	18-19
	Conroy
	The data clearly indicated that the achieved rates vary from technology to technology, as I said—83 per cent for DSL as opposed to 62 per cent for wireless. What was the cause of these varying data rates by technology?

Did achievable data rates vary by region?
	ACMA
	03/08/06

	96
	23
	Conroy
	I am asking you to give it a meaning and at this stage you are saying you do not have a settled view on the meaning of the word ‘internet’. I am asking for a settled view. I do not think I am asking for anything outrageous. I think there is a whole industry out there that is going to hang on your definition of the word ‘internet’.

How did they pass a test that you have not set? You do not have a settled view of the word. How did they pass?

Have we found a definition of the ‘internet’ during the break?
	ACMA
	23/08/06

	97
	24-25
	Conroy
	That would be good. I would appreciate knowing that there is a legal regime in place. I would like to get your thinking on a couple of the existing services. I have mentioned Telstra but I want to talk about some of the specifics. For instance, Telstra is currently providing IPTV services to its BigPond customers. I understand that Telstra has broadcast V8 supercar races and AFL video services to BigPond customers on a point-to-multipoint basis. I also understand that similar streaming video services were provided to Telstra mobile phone customers during the Rugby World Cup. Did Telstra obtain a broadcasting licence to deliver these services? Obviously, the answer is no. Has ACMA looked at the specific services that were being provided? We have mentioned Telstra before. I would like know your thinking behind why the V8 supercar races, the AFL video service, the Rugby World Cup and I think the  Commonwealth Games -

I would like to know what your thinking was behind those four issues, as to why they did not require a licence, as well as your more generic thinking about what constitutes -

So we would like to know if you looked at them and on what basis those four services passed your ‘no licence needed’ test, and then the more generic thinking behind this; that would be good as well.

So if there is not a consensus over the meaning of ‘the internet’ in the telecommunications sector, has this determination made it clear what the Broadcasting Act applies to? Has ACMA considered issuing guidelines to inform the telco sector of its view of the application of this law? Those are my questions; I am happy for you to take them on notice and come back with a considered view.
	ACMA
	23/08/06

	98
	26
	Conroy
	Now, in March, ACMA released a discussion paper on the use of the unassigned TV channels. How many submissions have you received on the matter? I think your website contains 30, but I understand there are some confidential submissions.

Could you take on notice how many confidential submissions were received?
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	99
	27
	Conroy
	Has anyone suggested other uses, like multichannelling by existing broadcasters or a fourth free-to-air network?

Have participants said that they would like more clarity on what restrictions will apply?
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	100
	32
	Ian Mac Donald
	Perhaps I have got the wrong agency, but does your agency oversee the contracts that the carriers have with the Commonwealth government in which they agreed to provide continuous mobile phone coverage along the major highways of Australia?

How are they going? Are they complying? And this is a trick question, because I know in advance that they are not supplying the major highways with the mobile phone coverage that the government indicated they wanted them to supply. It is something the government promised to do in the 1998 election, I think, and we have been doing it; we have been getting there, but we are still not there. Are you monitoring that?

Could I perhaps put on notice then, if you could get the information for me, which highways and what parts of Australia were intended to be part of the government’s commitment to provide mobile telephony? I am particularly interested—and I am sure other senators would be too—in the Bruce Highway in Queensland, the Landsborough Highway in Queensland and the road from Townsville to Mount Isa. I think they are the highways that we indicated would be covered. So I would like you to tell me which highways the contracts require them to cover. Can I also get you to advise me, on notice, of their success rate—what they claim to have covered in those areas—and, where it is not 100 per cent, what they intend to do about that. And, if they are not intending to get 100 per cent, why not, and what does the government need to do to make sure that they do provide 100 per cent coverage along the major highways? I appreciate that you cannot expect to have mobile phone services on every little back road in the country, but certainly they should cover the major trunk highways such as those I have indicated—the Bruce Highway, the Landsborough Highway, the highway out to Charleville, the highway out to Longreach from Rockhampton. All of those places I think would be included. For other senators, if it is not too much trouble, you might do further work on other parts of Australia as well.

Would that detail cover the things I have asked for? I do not want you to come back to me and say, ‘No, we don’t do that.’ I want to find out now whether you do do it, and if you do then I will expect the answers.

No, but I see from the ACA’s report that that is required. Minister, perhaps you could get that information for me if it is not this agency that does it and if it is some other part of your department, the whole conglomerate, that does it.
	ACMA
	19/09/06

	101
	34
	Conroy
	I understand that most multichannels run by the UK free-to-air broadcasters and most Foxtel channels only require about four megabits per second. Can you confirm that?
	ACMA
	23/08/06

	102
	35
	Conroy
	I was not asking about standard definition. I was asking what is the standard megabits per second needed to provide 10ATI.

Mr Tanner—I can take that question on notice. It may be something like 12 and seven.

My understanding is that it is around 12. I just wanted to confirm that. You can take that on notice.
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	103
	35
	Conroy
	I was after the standard one, but I am happy to have the range as well. How many megabits per second are needed to provide a standard definition simulcast channel?
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	104
	35-36
	Conroy
	I am told that new generation MPEG2 compression equipment—and this is not MPEG4; this is just new generation MPEG2—will generate spectrum efficiencies of up to 10 per cent. Is ACMA aware of that?

What impact will this technology have on the ability of broadcasters to do 1080i HDTV and also run a standard definition multichannel?

I will still want the answers. I am happy to be briefed.
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	105
	36-37
	Conroy
	I have a number of questions about ACMA’s ongoing broadband over powerline trials in Tasmania. Who wants to take them?

What is the current status of the trial? When do you anticipate that the trial will be completed?

BPL interference issues seem to have cropped up again in this Tasmanian trial, I understand. Some parties have recently claimed that the TasTel BPL product has been radiating in maritime distress and safety channels. Are those claims accurate?

I would hope not, but can you come back to us on this question: is it correct that there was interference and has it been solved?
	ACMA
	13/09/06

	106
	37
	Conroy
	What ability has TasTel shown to notch out certain frequencies for use by emergency services?

Is ACMA satisfied with this notching out process?
	ACMA
	10/09/06

	107
	Tabled
	Conroy
	What services/functions will ACMA no longer perform as a result of the decision take $500,000 from it and reallocate the funds to net alert? (see budget paper no.2 page 135)
	ACMA
	25/07/06

	108
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Can ACMA confirm that Prime Television has applied to ACMA to withdraw its services from the Cobar area?
	ACMA
	25/08/06

	109
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Is Prime is required to provide local content under a licence condition?
	ACMA
	25/08/06

	110
	Tabled
	Conroy
	What impact will the withdrawal of this service have on the availability of local, news and current affairs in the Cobar area?
	ACMA
	25/08/06

	111
	Tabled
	Conroy
	What process is ACMA following in dealing with this application?
	ACMA
	25/08/06

	112
	Tabled
	Conroy
	When does ACMA expect to make a final decision on this matter?
	ACMA
	25/08/06

	113
	Tabled
	Fielding
	In the Australian on 10 May 2006, it was reported that the Australian Communications and Media Authority 

"will conduct a research project into the long term psychological effect of the media on children, families and society. The Australian Communications and Media Authority will spend $200, 000 and will complete the study by July next year.”

What is the reason for doing this study, how does it mesh with ACMA’s programs, and how is it intended to be conducted? Please provide a copy of the contract document setting out the rationale and requirements for the study.
	ACMA
	23/08/06

	114
	Tabled
	Webber
	Has ACMA received any complaints about the standard of cables and repairs of the cables in the town of Nullagine?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	115
	Tabled
	Webber
	What action has ACMA taken to investigate the standard of cabling and the level of telephony services in Nullagine?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	116
	Tabled
	Webber
	Is it the case that telecommunications cable are strung along the fence of the local school?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	117
	Tabled
	Webber
	Is it acceptable that cabling is strung along a fence line?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	118
	Tabled
	Webber
	Is there any risk of danger to members of the public in laying cables in this manner?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	119
	Tabled
	Webber
	What actions have ACMA taken against the provider in relation to shortfalls in service and repairs in Nullagine?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	120
	Tabled
	Webber
	Has the provider agreed to rectify the problems?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	121
	Tabled
	Webber
	How long will it take the provider to resolve the issues?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	122
	Tabled
	Webber
	Are there any statistics or data that show the availability of telephone services in Nullagine?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	123
	Tabled
	Webber
	Does Nullagine suffer unusually high levels of outages compared to other towns of a similar size?
	ACMA
	31/08/06

	124
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Expenditure on Legal Services

(1) What sum did the department or agency spend during 2005-2006 on external legal services (including private firms, the Australian Government Solicitor and any others). 

(2) What sum did the department or agency spend on internal legal services. 

(3) What is the department or agency's projected expenditure on legal services for 2006-2007.
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	125
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Executive Coaching/Leadership Training
The following questions relate to the purchase of executive coaching and/or other leadership training services by the department/agency, broken down for each of the last four financial years.

Where available, please provide:

1. Total spending on these services.

2. The number of employees offered these services and their salary level.

3. The number of employees who have utilised these services and their salary level.

4. The names of all service providers engaged.

5. For each service purchased from a provider listed in the answer to the previous question, please provide:

a. The name and nature of the service purchased.

b. Whether the service is one-on-one or group based.

c. The number of employees who received the service.

d. The total number of hours involved for all employees.

e. The total amount spent on the service.

f. A description of the fees charged (e.g. per hour, complete package).

g. Where a service was provided at any location other than the department or agency's own premises, please provide:

i. The location used

ii. The number of employees who took part on each occasion

iii. The total number of hours involved for all employees who took part.
	ACMA
	11/08/06

	126
	14
	Lundy
	Yes. Minister, perhaps I can ask you that question. We have ample evidence over many years of Senate reports and Senate estimates that there are some 1.2 million people affected by pair gain systems who are, to varying degrees, inhibited in being able to (a) achieve a quality dial-up speed and (b) in many cases are unable to access a broadband service such as ADSL. My question is - and it is a matter of policy so I direct it to you - has the government considered placing some sort of licence condition on Telstra to prevent it charging the full line rental for a substandard line service, given the role and place of the internet in telecommunications in the 21st century?

Do you think it is a reasonable proposition that if someone cannot get a functioning dial-up service then they ought to be paying full rental on a line?
	Broadcasting
	

	127
	42
	Conroy
	Could you advise what changes have been made to the trade Practices Act since this [Productivity Commission] report was done?
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	128
	52
	Conroy
	Could you take on notice whether there are any other countries around the world that regulate IPTV in the way envisaged in the discussion paper? The minister mentioned Hong Kong. Could you just take on notice any others?
	Broadcasting
	07/08/06

	129
	55
	Conroy 
	Mr G Neil—There is an issue of whether or not the companies are prepared to have their filters—they were all commercial filters, brand filters—

Senator CONROY—How many filters were tested?

Mr G Neil—Five, I believe.

Senator CONROY—You can take it on notice—

Mr G Neil—One of the things that NetAlert was wrestling with was the issue of what it could release

publicly, given that they were testing commercial filters of—
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	130
	55
	Conroy 
	Senator CONROY—Did the trial test the Internet Sheriff product that is going to be used in a three-month trial in Tasmania, starting at the end of July?

Mr G Neil—Given that NetAlert is still wrestling with whether it has to make a decision about whether or not it will identify the filters that were used, then I do not think we are able to answer that question. That

would essentially undermine the confidentiality. I think they could answer that question.

Senator CONROY—I do not think that Internet Sheriff is shy in any way about being identified. They

have put themselves right out there publicly.

Mr G Neil—I can take it on notice and see if we are able to answer that question. Again, we would need

permission from the company.
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	131
	59
	
	Senator RONALDSON—Did you say public libraries were a Commonwealth or a state concern?

Senator Coonan—State.

Senator RONALDSON—I think you might have said Commonwealth.

Senator Coonan—Clearly, it is a state and territory jurisdiction, and that is why I have written to my state

and territory counterparts.

Senator CONROY—The Commonwealth does have the power to require public libraries to filter the

material, doesn’t it?

Senator Coonan—I will take some advice about the precise answer to that.

Senator CONROY—The communications power under section 51(v) of the Constitution is quite broad.

Senator Coonan—I said I would take some advice about it. I do not care what you read out; I will take on notice precisely the division of powers that relates to libraries.

Senator CONROY—So the government is happy to override states on industrial relations—

Senator Coonan—I did not say that. You cannot conclude that therefore the government will do anything. I have just told you what I will do.

Senator CONROY—Does the government have a policy to deal with libraries allowing children to access child pornography under section 51(v) of the Constitution?

Senator Coonan—I will take that on notice.

Senator CONROY—I will take that as a no.

Senator Coonan—You would be wrong.

Senator RONALDSON—It has been taken on notice.

CHAIR—Taking something on notice is a lot different from taking it as a ‘no’.
	Broadcasting
	07/08/06

	132
	64
	Conroy
	Senator CONROY—That would be each time one horse rides around and jumps over one of the hurdles, that is an event?

Mr G Neil—I think the—

Senator CONROY—That’s a competition?

Mr G Neil—Each element of the equestrian would be an event in its own right. Unfortunately, you are now

asking me a legal question, and it is probably wiser for us to take that on notice and give you a proper answer

after we have consulted, because we are now talking about a legal document, which is the antisiphoning list.
	Broadcasting
	23/08/06

	133
	66
	Conroy
	Mr G Neil—I can confirm that we have done such calculations and have determined numbers that constituted ‘events’, and we have made decisions about whether or not the golf is one event or a series of events. I apologise that I cannot reproduce that for you right now.

Senator CONROY—I am happy for you to take it on notice and give us that, but I actually wanted to ask

you about the rationale behind that.

Mr G Neil—Yes.
	Broadcasting
	23/08/06

	134
	66
	Conroy
	Senator CONROY—The three-day event is probably one of the more challenging ones to work your way through. I probably started with the hardest. Athletics is not, I presume, defined as an event itself?

Mr G Neil—No, I do not believe so.

Senator CONROY—I just want to move down to the next level. You have the 100 metres and the 200 metres. Would they be events or are the heats within the 100 and 200 metres individual events for the purposes of—

Mr G Neil—I would need further advice to give you a precise breakdown. I believe we can give you that

and I think we can answer it, but I would be guessing now. I can tell you that, in the football, we treat each match as a separate event. Every match in every round is an event for the purposes of the—

Senator RONALDSON—What about the four quarters?

Mr G Neil—I am sorry?

Senator CONROY—Your team did not turn up to play four quarters on the weekend, did it?

Senator RONALDSON—You are just having a lucky break at the moment.

Senator CONROY—With respect to athletics, do you define the semifinals, the individual heats and the final as separate events, or is the 100 metres, covering all of the heats and finals, an individual event?

Mr G Neil—We could. I think we could take that view. If you are asking me whether we did for the purpose of calculating that number, I cannot answer that question now.

Senator CONROY—Forgetting calculating that number, then, would you define those as individual events, or is that the same answer?

Mr G Neil—On our list we have treated finals separately from ordinary rounds, so that now for the French Open we list only the quarters, the semis and the final.

Senator CONROY—I understand that.

Mr G Neil—So we do it as a separate event.

Senator CONROY—So a heat in the 100 metres at the Olympics would be a separate event from the semifinal or the final?

Mr G Neil—At the moment, the entire Olympics is listed. Everything that happens in the Olympics is listed. Similarly for the Australian Open in tennis, every event is listed and—

Senator CONROY—I am trying to understand whether one Olympics got recorded in the thousand or hundreds of individual contests.

Mr G Neil—I do not think so. I think we treated the Olympics as a single event, but—

Senator CONROY—Please come back and confirm.
	Broadcasting
	23/08/06

	135
	67
	Conroy
	Senator CONROY—Then, on from that, it is: what is the definition of using it? So I am trying to understand the rationale when the minister says there are a thousand events on the list. I want to get to the thinking, and the minister has referred me to you, unfortunately.

Mr G Neil—My recollection is that we treated the Olympics as a single event, but I would need to verify that.

Senator CONROY—For the footy was each match counted separately for this thousand?

Mr G Neil—Yes, I believe so. But I would need to check.

Senator CONROY—No, I am not trying to catch you out. I am happy for you to come back and correct.

Mr G Neil—There are 20 rounds, and—

Senator CONROY—So each round was not an event?

Mr G Neil—eight matches a round. I think in Australian Rules there are eight.
	Broadcasting
	10/09/0

	136
	72
	Conroy
	Review of ACMA powers

When did Professor Ramsey report?
	Broadcasting
	11/08/06

	137
	Tabled
	Webber
	Will the Minister undertake to publicise all formal business and political connections of ABC Board appointees?
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	138
	Tabled
	Webber
	Does the Minister and/or government oppose in principle ABC staff having a right to any form of elected representation at management levels?
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	139
	Tabled
	Webber
	Was the Minister given any opportunity by the Board to influence the choice of the new managing director?
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	140
	Tabled
	Webber
	Does the Minister and/or government accept that it is desirable for the Board to have representatives from the smaller States?
	Broadcasting
	11/08/06

	141
	Tabled
	Webber
	Does the Minister disagree that the government's failure to give the ABC more money for digital content means that the ABC is not able to produce the original material needed to allow it to play its lead role of driving the adoption of digital TV by the public?
	Broadcasting
	03/08/06

	142
	80
	Ronaldson
	Tulloh Memo

Senator RONALDSON—You remembered Mr Tulloh’s memo, so presumably you saw it or were told about it. You will provide the committee with a copy of it, I take it?

Mr Cameron—Quite possibly, if it is still in circulation.
	ABC
	03/08/06 + 1 attach't

	143
	81
	Ronaldson
	Tulloh Memo

Senator RONALDSON—Can I be clear about what I want. I want to know when this document was sent out by Mr Tulloh, and I want to know whether there was a memo, which presumably there was, indicating that the Tulloh rules no longer applied. I do not think this committee, or anyone else in the Australian community, would accept that something as important as that to be overturned would not have required a formal internal decision and communication to the people that Mr Tulloh’s memo had been communicated to.

Mr Green—We will take that on notice. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	144
	82
	Ronaldson
	Breaches of UN Rule

Senator RONALDSON—Just off the top of your head, do you remember whether there were any memos from news executives issued to your journalists when they breached the UN rule? Are you aware, historically, of that ever occurring?

Mr Cameron—It may well be the case again.

Senator RONALDSON—Will you take that on notice?

Mr Cameron—I will. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	145
	88
	Wortley
	Salary Budget in SA Office

Senator WORTLEY—…What sort of cost is this high staff turnover to the taxpayer and what was the impact on the salary budget for South Australia, particularly given that some of the positions were not filled for some time?

Mr Cameron—Off the top of my head, the salary budget in South Australia is about the same as it is with all other program areas around Australia, that is, running a fraction under.

Senator WORTLEY—So the state director came in with money to spare?

Mr Cameron—The state news editor?

Senator WORTLEY—Yes, the state news editor.

Mr Cameron—I do not have the figures, but I suspect a very modest amount.

Senator WORTLEY—Would you be able to provide us with the figures for that?

Mr Cameron—If that is appropriate, and I presume it is, yes.
	ABC
	03/08/06 + 1 attach't

	146
	89
	Wortley
	Staff Training 

Senator WORTLEY—At the additional estimates in February I asked that you take on notice and look into the journalists who have replaced the senior journalists leaving the South Australia newsroom. I have not been able to locate a breakdown of those figures. Do you know if they were provided?

Mr Cameron—I thought they were. I was told they were.

Senator WORTLEY—What I have located is the journalists and banding structure in each of the newsrooms but not the senior journalists, who they were replaced by and their banding structure. In fact, more significant than their banding structure, I think, would be the point level. As you are aware, there is a significant difference between the bottom end of a band and the top end of a band.

Mr Cameron—I can give you that, if that is what you want, yes.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	147
	89
	Wortley
	Training of New Journalists

Senator WORTLEY—…Are you able to confirm that in the overwhelming majority of cases the journalists were replaced by journalists with less experience and at lower band levels but expected to fulfil the same or similar roles and responsibilities?

Mr Cameron—To the first part of your question—that is likely, because that is often the case. To the second part—I would have to have a look at that.

Senator WORTLEY—…Would you be able provide details of the formal training provided for these new journalists who have come in at lower levels to replace senior journalists? 

Mr Cameron—Yes. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	148
	90
	George Campbell
	Anti-Bullying Review

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—What has been the cost of the review so far?

Mr Pendleton—The cost of the review to date is about $130,000.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—$130,000?

Mr Pendleton—Can I check that for you?

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Yes, you can confirm it, if you like.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	149
	90
	Wortley
	Introduction of New Technology 

Senator WORTLEY—…Firstly, what is the cost of the implementation of the new technology and what were the indicators for the trial, in particular those developed to gauge the immediacy, quality and integrity of the program?

Mr Cameron—I will have to give you a proper answer in writing on that one. I do not know the cost. It would be modest. The other answers would need a proper response.

Senator WORTLEY—So you will take that on notice?

Mr Cameron—Yes. … 

Senator WORTLEY—When is it expected to be completed and the staff to be made aware of the outcome?

Mr Cameron—I will have to let you know.

Senator WORTLEY—Was it going to be a three-month trial or a six-month trial?

Mr Cameron—Again, I am not certain.

Senator WORTLEY—Would you take that on notice?

Mr Cameron—Yes, I will.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	150
	91
	Wortley
	First Run Australian TV Drama

Senator WORTLEY—Is it the case that, in the past four years, the ABC’s development of first-run Australian drama has gone from 103 hours down to 13 hours?

Mr Dalton—I think that those figures would be in that sort of vicinity, yes.

Senator WORTLEY—You do not yet have an idea of what the projected outcome for this year would be, for the first 12 months of the new funding?

Mr Dalton—Do you mean what we expect to be the hours of Australian drama that go to air this financial year, or in production?

Senator WORTLEY—Production.

Mr Dalton—I can probably get back to you in a few minutes.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	151
	95/96
	George Campbell
	Staff Dispute – Mr Cox

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—…I understand that Mr Cox has serious concerns with the ABC—and I do not know if you are in breach of the Privacy Act; I have not had time to look at it—that his Comcare report and assessments by a doctor in respect to his situation have been made available to his immediate management. In fact, I understand that five people in the ABC have had copies of that report. Can I ask you why that was circulated so widely?

Ms Howard—…I do not believe it has been circulated widely, but I am very happy to find that out. …

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Would you have a look at the Privacy Act to see whether or not this practice in fact breaches it?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	152
	96
	George Campbell
	Staff Training

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—As I understand it, there is no training being taken, that the down time has been allocated against the training budget.

Mr Pendleton—Within production resources?

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Yes.

Mr Pendleton—That is not my understanding.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can I ask you to take that on notice?

Mr Pendleton—I can look into that for you.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Make some inquiries, because that is the clear understanding of people who work in that area.

Mr Pendleton—We have procedures that sit around how the training time is allocated, how you actually tag time that you spend on training towards training and have it credited as part of a budget. There are processes and procedures in place to actually have that vetted by human resources before it is credited.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I am being told that it is not being applied in this area.

Mr Pendleton—I will look into that.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	153
	96
	George Campbell
	Local Radio Awards Training

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—…Does the ABC regard the local radio awards as training?

Ms Howard—No, the awards are not training. The two-day forum which is conducted for the finalists and the winners of the awards is training, but the awards themselves are not.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—How much of the training budget is spent on that?

Ms Howard—I could not tell you offhand, but I am happy to take it on notice. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	154
	96/97
	George Campbell
	Performance Against Training Targets

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Is the ABC capable of accounting for the money that is spent on training and matching that against outcomes?

Mr Pendleton—We regularly report to the board on performance against the training targets that we have.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Is it possible to make that information available to this committee?

Mr Pendleton—I can.
	ABC
	11/08/06

	155
	101
	Adams
	Programming on ABC2

Senator ADAMS—Can you tell me what percentage of TV programming is shown on ABC2 that is not shown on ABC’s analogue channel?

Mr Green—Yes, I would be happy to get back on notice to you on that.

Senator ADAMS—Also this one may have to be on notice too. What percentages of the programs shown of ABC2 are produced locally?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	156
	102
	Adams
	Netball Audience

Senator ADAMS—As you have got such great coverage, and this might be a survey that you could do perhaps, what would you say is the age of the viewer that watches netball?

Mr Dalton—I think there is a concern with—

ACTING CHAIR—Or who is likely to watch the netball that you have replaced her for.

Mr Dalton—We can certainly give you some information about the demographics if you would like me to follow up on that. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	157
	105
	Conroy
	Relationship with Parliamentary Library

Senator CONROY—Would you be charging the Parliamentary Library for access to archival ABC material on news and current affairs if they went to your website?

Mr Green—We have a very good relationship with the Parliamentary Library.

Senator CONROY—Sounds like it is going to get a bit rocky very soon.

Mr Green—No. I would have to take that on notice. I would be very surprised if that was the case. But can I take that on notice, and I will give you a description of the relationship between the ABC archive and library services and other public archival entities.
	ABC
	11/08/06

	158
	109
	Conroy
	Downloading of ABC Material

Senator CONROY—…Now, the BBC is focused on delivering content on demand. It has announced plans to introduce downloadable software allowing people to view BBC programs a week after they have been broadcast. We have been discussing that. Is the ABC looking at this sort of initiative?

Mr Green—Not specifically that, but we are certainly looking at the whole downloading environment and the way in which we can progress that. 

Senator CONROY—Okay. How much will it cost to implement that sort of technology?

Mr Green—I have no idea. We will have to get back to you.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	159
	110
	Conroy
	Appointment of Managing Director

Senator CONROY—……. Can you take on notice and give us an answer as to whether Mr Scott was short-listed by the search firm that you engaged, Egon Zehnder, I think it was?

Mr Green—That is right.

Senator CONROY—Could you take that on notice?

Mr Green—Will do.

Senator CONROY—…Can the ABC confirm reports that the board asked Egon Zehnder to prepare a revised short list of candidates after its initial presentation? I am happy for you to take that on notice.

Mr Green—Thank you.

Senator CONROY—Was Mr Scott on the initial list or only the revised list? Again, could you take that on notice? 

Senator CONROY—Did the ABC inform the minister that it was considering appointing Mr Scott?

Mr Green—I am not in a position to answer that.

Senator CONROY—If you could take that on notice. 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	160
	112

Xref Tabled Q1
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Red Symons

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I have a CD of Mr Red Symons, on 4 October 2004, just before 7 am, which I cannot play due to standing orders. I will provide you with a copy of it. …Ms Howard, did the staff at 774 Melbourne hold a referendum to reach this position? What authority does Mr Symons have to speak for the whole radio station?

Ms Howard—Absolutely none. I think we can assume he was joking.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will provide the CD to you. Please listen to it. 

Ms Howard—I would be delighted to listen to the CD. I cannot answer your questions until I hear the context.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	161
	113/114
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Prime Minister

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I want to now move over to another reporting of the Kovco funeral. I note that the ABC has upheld another complaint of mine that you falsely stated that the Prime Minister had entered the hall where the funeral for Mr Kovco was held through the back door to avoid confrontation with the family. In a letter to me, Mr Dawson acknowledged the error by the reporter. Your editorial policies require mistakes to be corrected in a timely fashion. Can you explain to me where and when this mistake was corrected?

Mr Dawson—As I think the letter explains, the reporter checked the claim, found it was not true and did not include it in the report he filed later that evening on the 7 pm news.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Yes, I did read that. Non-repetition is not a correction.

Mr Dawson—That is true.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Were you happy to leave the impression for those who had only seen the midday version that the Prime Minister had sneaked in through the back door?

Mr Dawson—I do not think anybody would be happy about that.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—We have heard all night about your policy and the rules about correction. It is very clear: if you make an error you have to correct it. Nowhere can I see that you made that correction. In my view you deliberately wanted to leave the impression that the Prime Minister had ‘sneaked through the back door’. I think they were the words that were used.

Mr Dawson—I am not aware of any correction. I am happy to check whether there was a correction but I am not aware of any.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	162
	115

Xref Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Triple J Guest Book

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…You have allowed the Triple J breakfast show guest book to be used to promote a union rally against IR changes….Is the following an accurate quote from you ABC editorial policies:

8.2.2 All interactive features—such as guest books—should be moderated by appropriately trained production staff ...Is this site monitored? Who is the monitor? Who is the moderator of this guest book and has he been spoken to?…

Ms Howard—I am very happy to find out who actually made that error and who was the moderator

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Is Mr McDougall the moderator?

Ms Howard—I have no idea who moderates the Triple J guest book. 

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Perhaps you could find out and give me details on whether whoever moderates it changes every so often or whether it is the same person.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	163
	117
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Comments by Cheryl Hall

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I want to take you to more ABC bias over trade union protests. Can I ask you about a news report on Tuesday, 22 February 2006 by Cheryl Hall about the dispute at the Dana Car Parts: ‘Dana is the first company to use the new IR laws to cut wages.’ The laws had not come into effect at that point and the company was still in negotiations with its workers, so the wages had not actually been cut. The laws came into effect on 27 March. Therefore you would agree that the statement is patently inaccurate. Everybody knew about the IR legislation but you have gone to air and have not even bothered to check your facts. By all means take it on notice.

Mr Cameron—I will have to because I did not personally check those facts.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	164
	119
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Double Standards

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…On the issue of double standards on leading with opposition reaction to the budget. Mr Cameron, in 2003 you wrote this memo, ‘We leave ourselves open to reasonable criticism when we place opposition comment ahead of government reaction on occasions. Let’s keep our news values in perspective.’ On the morning after the federal budget this month the presenter of Radio National 7 am news in Canberra led with the following ALP reaction to the budget… Two days later the 7 am news in Canberra had the following: 

‘The federal opposition says a Beazley government would do more for childcare and training than the government. Kim Beazley has delivered his formal reply, as Louise Willis reports.’ 

Why was opposition reaction to the budget deemed more important than the content while reaction to Mr Beazley’s speech was relegated when the reaction was the story? … Mr Cameron I will provide it to you and you can no doubt provide me with your comment in relation to it.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	165
	119
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Double Standards - Length of Answers

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Regarding double standards on length of answers; when the Prime Minister went on the 7.30 Report and was interviewed by Mr O’Brien—and again I will provide you with a copy of this—the Prime Minister gave a 15-line answer to a question. Mr O’Brien stated: ‘Let’s hope for some shorter ones now’ and he goes on, ‘it’s chewing up the interview time’. The PM was responding to a very complex issue—might I say typically rude and gratuitous of Mr O’Brien. A few weeks earlier when Mr O’Brien interviewed the Labor Party president Warren Mundine, a 22 line answer was unremarked by Mr O’Brien. One standard for the Labor Party and another one for the Prime Minister. Could you investigate the issue, Mr Cameron, and provide your comment to me.

Mr Cameron—For the record obviously I cannot agree with you but I will certainly look at the—

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will happily provide you with a copy of it and I hope you will speak to Mr O’Brien again. 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	166
	119
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Comments by Craig McMurtrie 17 May

Regarding the Prime Minister’s visit to Washington, last Wednesday, 17 May, your reporter Craig McMurtrie was in Washington and was speaking to Fran Kelly on Radio National Breakfast.

They were discussing the Prime Minister’s visit with President Bush and media speculation about the Prime

Minister’s future. Craig McMurtrie then volunteers his insight into his attitude towards his job. When asked by Ms Kelly about reporters’ questioning concerning the Prime Minister’s future he stated: ‘We were obviously trying to cause a bit of trouble by asking the question.’ Is it the role of your political correspondents to ‘cause trouble’ rather than purely report the facts?

Mr Cameron—I did not hear the particular interview, but I suspect there was a level of irony, humour and satire or whatever attached to that; it is a live Q and A and I would expect—

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Have a look at it and come back to me with an answer. 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	167
	119
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Use of ‘Draconian’

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…At the last estimates and again in questions we raised your position regarding the counter-terror laws which you describe as ‘draconian’… Mr O’Brien on 7.30 Report 3 November stated: ‘The government finally tabled its draconian new counter-terrorism measures in the parliament today.’ When did the ABC decide that it would agree, again taking sides in this instance with civil liberty lobbies and others whose opinion it is that these laws area allegedly draconian? 

Mr Cameron—I am not sure if we have dealt with that but you are obviously tabling it now.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will provide it to you.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	168
	120
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Use of ‘Our’ by ABC Staff

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I want to ask you another question about your answer in 123, and I will provide it to you. I do not know whether you have had a look at the answers that you provided on notice. I gave you 20 examples of the ‘our’ rule and you answered to me: ‘A number of the examples involved interviewees or third parties quoted using the word rather than ABC staff.’ I have them all here and I will give them to you again because you will find, and I will underline where the transgressions are, they were not interviewees; they were your staff, Mr Cameron…I will happily table them; I will give them back to you …They are your staff. Why not admit that they were your staff?

Mr Cameron—I will have a look at them.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	169
	120
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Comments by Mark Tobin on 28 April

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Mark Tobin on or about 28 April broadcast the following statement:

‘Mr Robb said it’s important that people who become citizens are able to assimilate easily into Australian society.’ This report followed the speech by Mr Robb at the Sydney Institute on 27 April. If Mr Tobin had actually read the speech, and I will give you a copy, he would have seen Mr Robb took great pains to make it clear he was talking about integration and not assimilation. I would appreciate if you could look at this speech carefully. Mr Robb used the word ‘assimilation’ once and that was only to differentiate it from the word ‘integration’. But your reporter Mr Tobin was very cavalier about the use of language and trying to infer a completely different message from the one that Mr Robb wanted to deliver. I want to ask you to seriously consider how this squares away with the legal requirement under your charter to take account of the multicultural nature of Australian society.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	170
	120/121
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Australian Story – Scott Rush

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I move to Scott Rush and the ethical versus legal issue that arose in relation to an Australian Story. Ms Fleming, the executive producer of Australian Story, made a false statement to the Radio National program The Media Report on 23 February this year. In the Australian Story program about drug mule Scott Rush, when the AFP were strongly criticised—I think you might recall that story—the ABC withheld important information about Mr Rush’s criminal past and simply stated: ‘There are still legal constraints that prevent discussion of some issues.’ But when Ms Fleming was defending herself on The Media Report she said:

I think the really important thing that’s getting overlooked here is that the introduction to the story up front, right at the start of the story, made it clear, unequivocally, that because of legal and ethical constraints, there were some issues that we would not be able to discuss in the episode. We made that very clear upfront in the introduction.

This is simply not true. In the program she said absolutely nothing about ethics. She lied, and I want you to go back and examine whether there were in fact any legal reasons. I think there were not legal reasons preventing you reporting the facts of the matter; there were moral or ethical reasons, but your program chose to dress those up as legal reasons. I think that is a very serious matter.

Mr Cameron—We will look at it, but there was legal advice to that effect.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—You go back and examine the transcript; that is not what was said at the beginning of the program. I will leave you to take that one on notice and I will expect an answer on that one.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	171
	121
	Fierravanti-Wells
	9/11 Conspiracy Theory

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—In that case, please take on notice the number of times that this sort of 9-11 conspiracy theory is being advanced on different programs and where it is being covered. In these programs, is there an opposite point of view being given—a bit of balance on the alternative point of view? Could you take that on notice. I will be most interested to see what your research elicits 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	172
	121
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Interview with Gore Vidal

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I now want to move on to Bob Carr and his flying off to the United States to interview another known left person, Gore Vidal, to present another anti-American opinion. Can you explain why this happened and how much it cost to send Bob Carr over to interview Gore Vidal in the US? What was the value of the exercise?

Mr Cameron—I thought we had done that but, if we have not, we will let you know.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Given that Mr Vidal often gives his opinions—in fact I saw a recent quote from him that he always takes advantage of any opportunity on television—I wonder why you had to go to the expense of sending Mr Carr over to the United States to interview him.

Mr Cameron—I can say, for what it is worth, without it being a full answer that we did not send him there; he was already there. But that is a very short answer and I will give you a more detailed answer.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Thank you, and please give me the cost as well.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	173
	121/122
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Employment of Mr McDougall

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I would like to move on to Mr McDougall and the Triple J breakfast program. I would like a straight answer on his employment. When did his employment relationship, part-time or otherwise, begin with the ABC?

Ms Howard—Offhand I cannot tell you that, but it should not be that difficult to check and we can take that on notice. …

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I want you to go back and give me the full details of his employment, how long he has been employed and the various capacities in which he has been employed, part time or otherwise.

Ms Howard—I have been told that he was not employed by the ABC at the time that you asked the question about, when he put that CD compilation together. …

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I would like you to produce for me a detailed response on his whole history with the ABC, what he has done, when he was employed, and the various programs that he has worked on, whether that be fill-in or otherwise.

Ms Howard—Sure.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	174
	123
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Comments by Mr McDougall

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—If you listen to what I am about to say then you will understand the context in which I put it. It will save your time and my time as well:

Was listening this morning when you raised the issue of the right awful PM, Little Jackie Howard and the co-inkydink re terrorism threat. The post also calls Mr Howard a ‘little shitbag’ and ‘Pol Pot’. Is Mr McDougall the moderator? You have said earlier you are not sure of the moderator, but come back to me if he is the moderator of the guest book. This example alone raises two issues: (1) what was said on air that prompted the posting, and (2) why does Mr McDougall who, as I understand it, moderates that site—and you are going to confirm this or otherwise— allow such references as ‘shitbag’ and ‘Pol Pot’ to describe the Prime Minister to remain on that site? If he was not the moderator, how could a moderator allow that sort of stuff to stay on there?

Ms Howard—As I said I will find out about the moderator of that site and the processes. I cannot answer that question.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Could you also go through that guest book and look at the other descriptions. …What is the role of your moderator? Isn’t there some quality control?

Ms Howard—There is absolutely quality control on the guest books.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Can you tell what is quality control about allowing our Prime Minister to be referred in those terms?

Ms Howard—I will take that issue on notice and see what I can find out about it.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	175
	123
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Triple J Ratings

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Now, Triple J breakfast have shed nearly 40 per cent of their audience, I believe, in little over a year. Are you happy about that?..... Also, you are advertising Triple J breakfast on ABC television. How much do these ads cost to produce?

Ms Howard—Very little.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Are you going to tell us how much?

Ms Howard—I cannot give you—

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Why don’t you take that on notice and tell us. Even ‘very little’ is too much.

Ms Howard—We are curious to know where you got the 40 per cent of the audience figure from? It is wrong.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will produce that information to you.

Ms Howard—It is entirely wrong, I am afraid.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	176
	123/124
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Television Program jtv

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…You mentioned jtv before, and I want to take you to some job adverts and other ads for ABC programs. How much are you budgeting to spend on your new TV show jtv? …

Mr Dalton—I will take it on notice. …

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I have noticed that you have been advertising a number of jobs with some very attractive salaries, and I will give you copies of no less than 11 jobs in Sydney and Melbourne, totalling salary ranges of $611,000 through to $744,000. This would be in addition to other costs such as studio, production, camera crews and music rights. What is the total cost? 

Mr Dalton—We have a budget. I am just saying I do not have the figure for that at the moment.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	177
	124
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Advertisements on Channel 7

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Whilst I appreciate the comments that were made about funding, why has it been necessary for your Sydney local radio station to take out advertisements on Channel 7 pushing viewers to tune into ABC 702 and morning programs by Virginia Trioli and Adam Spencer? How much did it cost to make those advertisements, and how much is it costing to screen them on Channel 7?

Ms Howard—I can get you that information. I will take the question on notice.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Is Channel 7 the only station where you are screening them?

Ms Howard—I am not sure; I cannot recall.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Perhaps you might get back.

Ms Howard—We are also showing them on our own ABC television.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	178
	124
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Ratings for Virginia Trioli

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Having dumped Ms Loane, how much is it costing the taxpayers of Australia to boost Ms Trioli’s ratings.

Ms Howard—Ms Trioli’s ratings are being boosted all on their own. She is doing very well, thank you.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Perhaps you would like to provide me with some details on that.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	179
	124
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Cost of Local Radio Awards

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…And how much does the ABC spend each year on its in-house local radio awards?

Ms Howard—We have provided that several times to the Senate and I am sure you will find that in previous estimates we have given you—

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Please provide the latest ones.

Ms Howard—As I said to Senator Campbell earlier, we have a two-day training forum for the staff who are nominated for those awards, and the awards are an evening in the middle of those awards.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Please give us some details on its cost. 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	180
	124
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Terry Lane The National Interest 23 October

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Moving on to Australia’s alleged secret police on Terry Lane. Why did Terry Lane have a look at this? Radio National’s The NationalInterest of 23 October make three references to Australia’s secret police, as he describes it, trying to make Australia under John Howard seem like a communist East Germany. Australia, as you all know, does not have a secret police. I will give you a copy of the transcript and I would appreciate if you could investigate it and please explain why this allegation of secret police is made on Mr Lane’s program.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	181
	125


	Fierravanti-Wells
	Tony Eastley Interview with Gough Whitlam

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Moving now to some of your answers on the previous estimates. ….For example, you were asked about Tony Eastley on AM promoting Gough Whitlam’s view of the dismissal by saying: ‘As you say in your book, the Constitution was subverted.’ …In your answer you replied: ‘You say in your book’ indicated it was Mr Whitlam’s view being presented. I do not agree with this. Mr Eastley made the statement ‘as you say’, which clearly indicates that he was accepting that as a statement of fact. I will try again: why did Mr Eastley present Mr Whitlam’s opinion as fact? You will probably have to go back and have a look at your answer, which I will provide it as well as the transcript. I would appreciate if you could have a look at this and provide me with a proper answer next time I ask it.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	182
	126

Xref

Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Number of Crew at Cole Inquiry

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…When, for example, Mr Beazley attended the May Day rally, you had four ABC microphones set up with all the attendant staff. Mark Vaile appeared at the Cole Inquiry and there were 14 ABC reporters and production staff present. Why did you need 14?

Mr Green—I wish to have that confirmed. 

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Please explain to me why there were 14 ABC reporters and production staff present on that day. 
	ABC
	23/08/06

	183
	126
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Use of Term ‘Boat People’

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Now, I want to take you to a couple of other things. As to the use of the word ‘boat people’ in the headlines of Sydney’s 7 pm TV news on 13 April, I had understood that the word ‘boat people’ had been banned, so why is it still in use?

Mr Green—I am not aware of it. Mr Cameron?

Mr Cameron—It should not be, but it sounds like a slip; I have not heard about this one but now I have.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Will you investigate that and get back to me?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	184
	126/127
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Errors of Historical Accuracy

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I go back now to examples of ABC errors of history. …For example, Rachel Carbonell on Lateline of 19 April said, ‘But perhaps not as worried as President Ronald Reagan was during the world oil shortages of the 1970s.’ Wrong. Ronald Reagan was elected in November 1980, inaugurated in January 1981; he left office in January 1989. Rafael Epstein on World Today, ‘When Elizabeth became Queen in 1953’; well, she became Queen in 1952. ABC online, ‘Edmund Hillary conquering Mount Everest 63 years ago,’ when really it was 53 years ago. You may say that is trivial; but what is the role of your supervisors? What is the process for picking up these sorts of things? Probably you will dismiss them as trivial, no doubt—

Mr Green—No, we are committed to accuracy, and there is a very rigorous process of supervision, but I would invite you, not in order that you might necessarily come to a different position, to come in and sit through the way in which some of our material is produced in terms of our television news, and see the sorts of checks that are going on.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Obviously there are not that many checks because these sorts of things are happening. I am raising it in the hope that you will make your staff more aware of making sure that these checks and balances, if they are in place, are adhered to.

Senator RONALDSON—Could you take that on notice, the processes used to—

Mr Green—The editorial management processes of the corporation?

Senator RONALDSON—The sorts of things you are talking about in the invitation you extended to my colleague. I am sure these could be put in writing as I would be interested to know those processes. 

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Perhaps you might take those three instances and just see if indeed they were raised.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	185
	127
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Editorial Breaches

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I have some questions about management of staff over editorial breaches. It follows from some previous answers, but I will put those on notice. Mr Anderson made a really unfortunate joke about the trapped miners in Tasmania on the Glass House of 3 May. I have not even begun on the Glass House. Could you provide me with that transcript and also your comments in relation to what I believe were quite inappropriate comments? …
	ABC
	23/08/06

	186
	127
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Editorial Breaches

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I will also put on notice some references and comments made by Rafael Epstein in relation to the Queen on her eightieth birthday….. In this instance—and I will provide you with the details—he trashes the Queen with the help of a commentator whom he describes as a republican and a communist from Mr Epstein’s favourite newspaper, The Independent, where the Queen and her family are referred to as emotional cripples with warped psyches. I find that terribly offensive, but I will provide that for you and perhaps you will give me your views on that.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	187
	127
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Use of Term “Party Drugs”

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…I want to raise something about party drugs, and the 7.30 Report spends a lot of program time examining the issue of mental health. …I want to focus particularly on a recent quote by the parliamentary secretary, Christopher Pyne, when he said, ‘I don’t think there’s any such thing as a party drug; it’s an insidious terminology which has crept into our vernacular and does people a great deal of harm.’ His remarks have been supported by noted drug expert Dr Paul Dillon. What is ABC’s policy on this expression ‘party drug’? I will provide to you about 20 examples I have found which refer to party drugs; for example, Mark Colvin on PM in November last year and Anne Barker on Lateline in April last year. What is your policy in relation to the use of this terminology? Also, Mr Dillon has said that he does not use this terminology, but you seem in parts to have cited him. I will put it on notice, but can you have a look at the examples and come back to me on your use and your policy of use of this terminology, ‘party drugs’? 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	188
	128
	Fierravanti-Wells
	ABC Legal Expenses

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—…Can somebody look at that and tell me how much of your legal expenses—and I would like a breakdown, so could you take this on notice—was actually in defamation and other legal payouts? Could you break down those legal payouts?

Mr Green—Yes, most certainly.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—With 15 in-house lawyers, why do you have $2.6 million? Surely, if you have 15 in-house lawyers, these lawyers must be providing some advice in relation to programming so that you do not get yourself into the problems of being sued for defamation down the track?

Mr Pendleton—The $2 million within that is a range of costs that relate to the engagement of external legal advice or counsel and senior counsel in relation to matters. …..

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—So, the $2.6 million would include something like the $60,000 payout to Paul Everingham after a defamation proceeding from ABC Radio current affairs?

Mr Pendleton—I am not sure about that particular matter.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Perhaps you might look at that as well.
	ABC
	15/08/06

	189
	128
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Transcript The Chaser’s War on Everything 19 May

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS— …could you please provide me with a transcript of the program of The Chaser’s War on Everything of last Friday, 19 May? …I was particularly disgusted by the comments relating to the Prime Minister. I would like to know how many complaints you may have received about that. 

Mr Green—I did not see the program, but I will certainly have a look at the transcript.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	190
	129
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Sue Howard Interview with Margaret Simons
Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Ms Howard, I would like to take you to an article by a Paul Gray entitled ‘ABC’s culture of contempt’ in the Australian of 16 September 2005. This article cites an interview that you did with Margaret Simons in the Robert Manne edited book, Do Not Disturb. It contains a reference to bias.

Ms Howard—I am sorry; I did no such interview with Margaret Simons.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Well, you were quoted. I will give you a copy of it. I will raise it. …

Ms Howard—I am sorry; I am not aware of having done anything of the kind.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will give you a copy of this. It contains a reference to bias, and it says: ‘If there is bias at the ABC, it is a vague middleclassness associated with the background of the presenters and

program makers, Howard says. She asserts, “It is not party political bias.” Howard also directly confirms what many critics of the ABC’s ideological culture believe, that the corporation is effectively governed as a workers’ collective.’

Ms Howard—I am sorry; I have absolutely no idea what the source is or what you are talking about.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—I will give you a copy of the article which I have here which quotes you and quotes an interview that you did, and I am sure that you will come back to me.

Ms Howard—I would be fascinated to see it.

Senator FIERRAVANTI-WELLS—Absolutely.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	191
	Tabled

Xref Hansard 112
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Red Symons

I refer to my comments at the Estimates hearing. The CD of 4 October 2004 referred to is enclosed.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	192
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Style Guide

If, as the ABC maintains, the news and current affairs style guide is a “guideline” and not a rule book, why did Mr Cameron issue three memos (see enclosed) stating variously:

“The rules are not optional – they are mandatory”

“The guidelines must be treated as directives, not suggestions”

“Our editorial rules” (clearly in relation to style guide matters e.g. our troops, first names etc.)

Would the ABC provide copies of the first two memos of March 2003, and all other memos issued by news/caff management since March 2003, in order to help Senators understand ABC rules and guidelines.


	ABC
	30/08/06

	193
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	“More than”

Please clarify whether the entry in the style guide warning against referring to “more than” because it can create the impression that the ABC is impressed with the size of the crowd is still in operation.

Why does the ABC persist in answers to Senate Estimates that “more than” is acceptable if the reporter had grounds to believe there really were “more than” the number quoted, when the style guide warns of the potential consequences of this.

Will the ABC answer the previous question on notice (February 2006 – No. 125) in regard to what those reporters could have known about the number of those present, when clearly they were not present.

In that answer, you stated that this would be OK if the ABC “had good reason to believe it really was more than the number mentioned” and “In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the ABC assumes that the former is the case”.

Surely the fact that Eleanor Hall was not in Texas, Hamish Robertson was not in Baghdad and Andrew Geoghan was not in Hong Kong, represents “evidence to the contrary.”  Do you not agree.

Why did Mr Cameron say that “more than 10,000” would be OK? What is a crowd of, say, 20,000 had been expected? Would it still be OK.

Please consider a new example involving “more than” 100 miners going on strike and explain how this conforms to your style guide rules.

What steps is the ABC taking to manage this issue of crowd sizes, especially in respect of IR and the Iraq War.

And could you explain why the expression “strike action” is banned in the style guide. (Although I am not suggesting it was used on this occasion
	ABC
	30/08/06

	194
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	“Our” rule

If the ABC’s Mr Cameron and Mr Green can tell May 2006 Senate Estimates that breaches of the “our” rule would have to be judged on their merit, why won’t the ABC address the 500 individual examples of breaches provided to the ABC by Senator Santoro.

How are Senators who are pursuing this issue to understand the operation of the “mandatory rule” if the ABC will not address the examples.

What action was taken involving the 7.30 Report after 40 breaches of the “our” rule in four months  (See enclosed)

Given your dire warnings about employment status for breaches of the “our” rule, and noting the 72 examples presented to the ABC involving Mr Quentin Dempster of Stateline NSW between March 2003 and October 2005, and given that Mr Cameron evidently spoke to Mr Dempster after this was raised by Senator Santoro in a speech of October 2005, what action will be taken in light of a further four breaches (enclosed).

October 21, 2005 “our most famous military venture”

February 10, 2006 “our TV screens” (they were SBS TV screens)

March 17, 2006 “our children” and “our regular politicians”

And how could Mr Dempster forget about this so quickly, given that he was apparently spoke to as recently as last October.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	195
	Tabled

Xref Hansard

121/122
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Lindsay McDougall

Was Mr McDougall engaged for various spells since 2002 as the enclosed from your own web site indicates.

The “Rock Against Howard” compilation produced by Mr McDougall includes a track about John Howard called “Gun Him Down” (see enclosed).

Mr McDougall produced the “Tsunami” song which as the enclosed shows “attacks the government” and was broadcast from January 2005. Is Mr McDougall the moderator of the Breakfast show guest book?

If not, who is?

If he is, doesn’t the lack of moderation of the anti-Howard comments show his bias.

I refer to the enclosed Nielsen surveys which show that a five city average rating before they started (last survey of 2004) and up to the latest survey (2006, no. 3) has recorded a drop of almost 40%, including a 55% drop in Perth. Does the ABC now agree with my comments at the Estimates hearing.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	196
	Tabled

Xref Hansard 125
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Tony Eastley

Why do you persist in your claim that when Mr Eastley said “as you say in your book the constitution was subverted”, this is actually “you say”, when patently, “as you say” is presenting an opinion as a fact.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	197
	Tabled

Xref Hansard 125
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Richard Aedy Media Report

Why do you persist with your claim that “it would be a police state” and “it’s still a police state” means Mr Aedy meant ‘it might be a police state”. “Is” and “would be” are not the same as “might be”.

And rather than the uninformative answer that you provided to question 134 from February Estimates about sympathy for terrorism, could you provide an answer.

What point was Mr Aedy trying to make?

And could you explain why Mr Aedy stated “there aren’t enough people saying that” in response to a program guest’s left-wing opinions. Why does an ABC broadcaster in a sensitive area like counter-terror laws, take it upon himself to make this statement, which is clearly a partisan view?

In fact, his statement is false, because on the ABC there have been many people, programme guests and presenters (Tony Jones, Daniel Hoare and Kerry O’Brien to name but three) saying this very thing.  
	ABC
	30/08/06

	198
	Tabled

Xref Hansard 126
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Mark Vaile at the Cole Inquiry

There were reportedly 14 ABC editorial and production staff at Mr Vaile’s appearance before the Cole Inquiry.

Fran Kelly, Radio National Breakfast

Nick Grimm and Michael Brissenden, 7.30 Report

Mark Tobin and Nonee Walsh, Radio News

Michael Edwards, Lateline

Brendan Trembath, Radio Current Affairs

David Spicer and Jim Middleton, TV News

Two camera crews – four people - (morning and afternoon shift)

OB van operator 
	ABC
	23/08/06

	199
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Management of staff over Editorial Breaches

In respect of answers from Senate Estimates of October 2005, why is action involving staff after editorial breaches “a matter for the ABC” and “a crucial element of the ABC’s independence” (answer to Question 17) but full details are divulged about action taken involving staff breaches in the answers to questions 109-111.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	200
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Edmond Roy’s Donkey

Could we have a proper explanation that makes sense of Edmond Roy’s comment about a donkey and how there is a connection between Australian values and donkeys, because the answer about larrikinism makes no sense. There is no discernible connection between larrikinism and a donkey.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	201
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Depleted Uranium

In answers to question on notice from February 2005 Estimates about depleted Uranium you have totally avoided any analysis of the article by Dr Whitehall. Your sole defence was one article. One article versus many.

Please respond to the critique of the Science Show, Lateline, Radio National Breakfast, The World Today, George Negus Tonight, Late Night Live, Rural News, Local ABC Rockhampton, Radio National, and the Conversation Hour.
	ABC
	23/08/06

	202
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	War on Terror

What reference to the war on terror will be contained in the new style guide?

Similarly, will the reference to “freedom fighter” remain, given that Al Qaeda, the Bali bombers, 7/7 etc could hardly be considered as freedom fighters. What freedom are they fighting for?

When will the guide be published and could you provide two copies.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	203
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Boat people, asylum seekers or refugees

Why did Tony Eastley on AM of May 24, 2006, refer to people arriving by boat in northern Australia as “refugees”? By your own admission, a refugee is someone formally granted refugee status, which has not happened in this case. I note your London reporter correctly referred to asylum seekers, but why does Mr Eastley get it wrong so often?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	204
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	The Death Toll

I enclose examples of breaches of the guideline or rule on describing “rising death tolls”. Please note, an extensive search would reveal far more examples of this breach)

Will the ABC review the examples and explain how they fit with your style guide.

In particular, I draw your attention to “Death toll expected to rise in wake of Hurricane Katrina”, which is exactly the same as one reference in your style guide.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	205
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Mr Osama Bin Laden

In previous answers, the ABC has not explained why Mr Faine referred to Mr Osama Bin Laden.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	206
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Remembrance Day

When Ms Lisa Sweeney returns from leave, would you ask her to clarify events in your Sydney newsroom of 11/11/04 in relation to previous claims about Remembrance Day.

Would you also ask your Sydney presenters about what Ms Sweeney said to them regarding this.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	207
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Alan Kohler and ethanol

Would the ABC provide an explanation of its finding in relation to this matter?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	208
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Funding

In the budget the ABC received an extra $88.2 million over the next three years.

How much of this money will go towards capital expenses?

How much of this money will go towards operational expenses? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	209
	Tabled
	Conroy
	New Services

In the budget the ABC was allocated an extra $88.2 million above indexation. How much of this money will be spent on new services?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	210
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Australian Content - Hours

The ABC was allocated $30 million to produce Australian Content in the budget. How many hours of Australian content will this initiative allow the ABC to produce over the next three years?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	211
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Australian Content - Genres

As a result of the budget initiative on Australian television content, how many extra hours of Australian content will the ABC be able to produce in the following categories in the next financial year: 

· Documentaries 

· Children’s drama

· Family drama 

· Drama

· Arts 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	212
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Drama

The ABC broadcast 13 hours of drama in 2005. 

How many hours of drama will be shown in 2006? 

How many hours of drama were broadcast in 1996?
	ABC
	

	213
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Base Funding

In the Minister's press release of 9 May 2006 it was stated that the ABC's base funding would increase to $530.8m in 2006-07. However the ABC annual report 2004/05 pg 54 stated that the ABC's comparative funding for 2005/06 was $625million.

Can the ABC explain the difference between the two measures of funding?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	214
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Regional and Local Programming

Could the ABC please describe the "Regional and Local Programming initiative" referred to in the minister's media release of 9 May? Is this the same programme as the National Interest Initiative?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	215
	Tabled
	Conroy
	New Services

The ABC sought $13.5m over the triennium under the heading of "new and innovative services", to service outer metropolitan and regional radio and online services. Will the $13.2m in the budget be applied to the services the ABC requested (outer metropolitan and regional radio and online services)? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	216
	Tabled
	Conroy
	Coverage of Netball

Has the ABC reduced the coverage of netball on the ABC's main channel for the current season? Is yes, why was it decided to move the majority of netball coverage to ABC2? 

What has been the viewer response to this decision? Has the ABC received many complaints on this issue? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	217
	Tabled
	Conroy
	KPMG Forward Work Plan

I understand that the KPMG report identifies a forward work plan of matters for the ABC? Can the ABC outline the nature of the work plan? Does it specify efficiency measures?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	218
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Licence Agreements

Mr Green told Senate estimates that —

We have a number of licence agreements in really four key market areas: in online delivery in terms of other sites that might use some of our content; the mobile market, where ABC content is licensed to be used, for example, on mobile phones. There is the third category of vendor licensing, where market aggregators who reassign, reformat or reorganise information might access under a licence agreement ABC content, and there is a whole new emerging category in terms of licensing ABC content on trains, for example, video on demand and categories like that."
Can the ABC supply the committee with the number of licence arrangements the ABC has in these 4 key market areas and the names of the parties to this arrangements.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	219
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Enterprises

Could the ABC provide the committee with data on the contribution of ABC Enterprises to the ABC's total income in the years from 1995/96 to 2004/05? Could this information be provided in dollar terms and as a percentage of total income?
	ABC
	23/08/06

	220
	Tabled
	Conroy
	ABC Digital Production and Content Management System

Has the ABC made any estimate of the cost of the "Digital Production and Content Management System" that it flagged in its triennial funding submission? 

If yes please provide details?

Was the need for this investment examined by KPMG? Did the ABC bring the matter to the attention of KPMG?

What sort of services will this investment enable the ABC to provide?

Is the ABC aware of whether other broadcasters in Australia or Internationally have implemented the type of system that the ABC has in mind? If yes, please provide details?
	ABC
	11/08/06

	221
	Tabled
	Webber
	ABC Program Rage
Can the ABC investigate the possibility of including the title of the song and the name of the artist at the end of each song on the RAGE program? Currently the information is only at the start of each song.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	222
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Budget

Can you provide the committee with a copy of the KPMG review into the adequacy and efficiency of ABC funding.
	ABC
	03/08/06

	223
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Budget

Is the $45m allocated to the ABC for improvements to its capita and asset base a direct result of the savings resulting from KPMG's efficiency report? 

Is this $45m a one-off, 3-year only, funding allocation, or is it to become part of the ABC's base funding?
	ABC
	

	224
	Tabled
	Siewert
	Local and Regional

Is the $13.2m over the triennium to be applied to outer metropolitan and regional radio and online services?

Is it rolled into base funding? Or is it for the duration of the triennium only? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	225
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Budget

In its Triennial Funding Submission summary the ABC specified the amounts it was requesting for new services ($38.4 per annum) and for rolling into the triennial funding amounts tied to limited periods of time ($54.4m over 3 years).

1. Did the ABC hope that the KPMG review would recommend funding in addition to the ABC's specified funding requests?

2. Would that mean then that the ABC was requesting $179.5m over 3 years and leaving it to the KPMG review to recommend funding additional to that?
	ABC
	11/08/06

	226
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

How much extra drama, documentaries and children's programming would $10m per annum produce? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	227
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

In his media release Chairman Donald McDonald said that "the funding will flow to the independent production sector". Is this in effect outsourcing the production of Australian drama production?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	228
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

What order of funding would it take for the ABC to be able to do in-house drama productions?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	229
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

Is the $10m a one-off injection into the specific fund or does it become part of the ABC's base funding? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	230
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

Why did the ABC get only half of what it requested for the production of Australian Television content? 
	ABC
	03/08/06

	231
	Tabled
	Siewert
	ABC Drama

Isn’t the Government determining the ABC’s priorities by reducing its production scope in this way?
	ABC
	03/08/06

	232
	Tabled
	Siewert
	Radio Australia

The Triennial Funding Submission summary stated that "the ABC proposed the continuation of existing funding of $3.3m per annum to enhance Radio Australia transmissions to the Asia Pacific region". 

Does this proposal form any part of the $88.2m?

When does this existing funding to Radio Australia cease?

How is the government going to assess the impact and outcomes of the $3.3m allocated to Radio Australia?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	233
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	Labelling

Rule 6.14.4 states, “Where labels have been ascribed to an individual or group by a third party, this will be made clear within the broadcast.”

In the November answers to questions on notice you helpfully provided the following example: “What the US government calls a terrorist cell.” The ABC style guide provides another example which is even more relevant: “What the Israeli government calls a terrorist cell.”

A. Why is it that when various Israeli leaders and spokesmen use terms like terror cell and terrorist organisation, your reporters change it to militants?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	234
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	Statement by Israeli Government

Mark Willacy on Radio National News last September: “Israel described it as a work accident involving the home of a militant.” 

A.
Is this really how Israel described it?


Ros Childs on the Midday Report last November the 23rd, “Israel says it killed four Hizbollah fighters.”

B.
Is this really how Israel described it?


The transcript from the Israeli government said in amongst four references to “the terrorist organisation Hizbollah”, “We know of four terrorists who were killed.”

C. How do you explain the difference between the Israeli government’s statement and the ABC’s reporting?

D. What action if any was taken to address this difference in contravention of the style guide?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	235
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	7.30 Report 2 January

Maxine McKew on the 7.30 Report on the second of January this year: “The Israeli military has launched a series of attacks in Gaza in what it says is an attempt to stop Palestinian militants from firing rockets into Israeli territories.” Was that really, to quote, “what Israel says”? 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	236
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	News Report

The Israeli Ministry of Foreign Affairs website of 2 January 2006 stated: “In the past weeks he headed an Islamic Jihad terror cell responsible for launching numerous projectile rockets at Israel from the northern Gaza strip.” which entirely omits any reference to “militants”.

A) Why did your journalists change the wording of what the Israelis say, and then state that that is what they said?

B) How do you explain the difference between the Israeli government’s statement and the ABC’s reporting?

C) What action if any was taken to address this difference in contravention of the style guide?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	237
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	UN Security Council Resolution

At the last hearing, I asked, “Mr Balding, on 23 August Mark Willacy was talking about the West Bank and made the comment in his report that ‘all of the West Bank is regarded under international law as Palestinian territory’. 

The written answer I received was:

The ABC does not accept that UN Security Council Resolution 242 of 22 November 1967 contradicts the assessment made by Mark Willacy. 

UN Security Council Resolution 242 states that the principles for a “just and lasting peace” in the Middle East should include:

(i) Withdrawal of Israel armed forces from territories occupied in the recent conflict;

(ii) Termination of all claims or states of belligerency and respect for and acknowledgement of the sovereignty, territorial integrity and political independence of every State in the area and their right to live in peace within secure and recognized boundaries free from threats or acts of force.

In other words, UN Security Council Resolution 242 is tendered by the ABC as proof of the truth of Mark Willacy’s assertion that all of the West Bank is Palestinian territory under international law. However, in fact Resolution 242 proves Mr Willacy to be incorrect. The resolution only requires Israel to withdraw “from territories”. The withdrawal is not required to be from “all the territories” or even “the territories”. This phrasing in the resolution was intentional, and very specific. The British Ambassador at the time, Lord Caradon, introduced Resolution 242. He later explained, “It would have been wrong to demand that Israel return to its positions of June 4, 1967, because those positions were undesirable and artificial” (Beirut Daily Star, June 12, 1974).
Similarly, the US Ambassador at the time, Arthur Goldberg explained: "The notable omissions — which were not accidental — in regard to withdrawal are the words 'the' or 'all' and 'the June 5, 1967 lines'....the resolution speaks of withdrawal from occupied territories without defining the extent of withdrawal" (speech to AIPAC Policy Conference, May 8, 1973).

Hence under UN Security Council resolution 242, it is still to be finalised by negotiation.

This clearly proves that Mark Willacy’s report was wrong, and the ABC needs to ensure that your reporters cease making this claim.

How do you explain the apparent anti-Israel bias in the reports coming out of the Middle East by ABC reporters?
	ABC
	07/08/06

	238
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	Tony Eastley AM 3 April

Tony Eastley on “AM” on April 3, 2006, reported that “A leading human rights group has criticised Israel's military for refusing a Palestinian AIDS patient unrestricted access to treatment inside Israel. The army says it will let the father of seven in, but only if he pays for two armed Israeli security guards to escort him to his medical appointments.” Mark Willacy then reported on the man’s problems.

A) Why did the ABC not provide balance and report that the Palestinians have, in the past, used real or made up medical problems to carry out terrorist attacks in Israel, which may have made Israel’s actions seem less unreasonable?

B)  What lessons about one-sided reporting have the ABC and Mr Willacy learned from the Gaza fishermen story?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	239
	Tabled
	Ronaldson
	Labelling of Terrorists

The Hansard of the May Senate estimates makes it very clear that the ABC made a categorical acknowledgment that Hamas, Hezbollah and Islamic Jihad are terrorist organisations:

Senator RONALDSON—Are you confirming that the ABC views Islamic Jihad as a terrorist organisation?

Mr Cameron—We have described in these examples here—

Senator RONALDSON—Is the answer yes or no? The answer clearly is yes, is it not?

Mr Cameron—The answer is yes.

The ABC has tried to qualify their answer by referring to “we have described in these examples.”

In answers to questions on notice from the February Senate Estimates, the ABC provided the four examples which Mr Cameron referred to, and which they said showed them referring to terrorism or terrorist.

In fact, those examples referred to acts of terrorism, and individual bombers or gunmen as terrorists. None of the examples which they provided referred to “terrorist organisations” or “terror groups”. 

Here are their examples: 

1) (In reference to Hamas) “Its terrorist attacks”

2) “Hamas, which is best known for its terrorist activities” 

3) “Hamas…responsible for ordering terrorist operations” 

4) “terrorist attacks”

Is the ABC now trying to back track from the answers it gave in May Senate Estimates and say to staff and inquiring outside journalists that “it didn’t acknowledge anything categorical at Senate Estimates but rather referred to a specific example.”?

Will the ABC will now refer to Islamic Jihad, Hezbollah and Hamas as “terrorist organisations” or “terror groups”?

Would the ABC supply to the committee a copy of the memo Mr Cameron or someone evidently circulated to staff at the end of May 2006 about this matter. 
	ABC
	30/08/06

	240
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Expenditure on Legal Services

(1) What sum did the department or agency spend during 2005-2006 on external legal services (including private firms, the Australian Government Solicitor and any others). 

(2) What sum did the department or agency spend on internal legal services. 

(3) What is the department or agency's projected expenditure on legal services for 2006-2007.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	241
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Executive Coaching/Leadership Training
The following questions relate to the purchase of executive coaching and/or other leadership training services by the department/agency, broken down for each of the last four financial years.

Where available, please provide:

1. Total spending on these services.

2. The number of employees offered these services and their salary level.

3. The number of employees who have utilised these services and their salary level.

4. The names of all service providers engaged.

5. For each service purchased from a provider listed in the answer to the previous question, please provide:

a. The name and nature of the service purchased.

b. Whether the service is one-on-one or group based.

c. The number of employees who received the service.

d. The total number of hours involved for all employees.

e. The total amount spent on the service.

f. A description of the fees charged (e.g. per hour, complete package).

g. Where a service was provided at any location other than the department or agency's own premises, please provide:

i. The location used

ii. The number of employees who took part on each occasion

iii. The total number of hours involved for all employees who took part.
	ABC
	30/08/06

	242
	Tabled
	Brown
	Follow up Question – Political News Reports

My new questions relate to the original Question No. 35 from Supplementary Estimates Oct/Nov 2005.

Your reply included the information that between 1st January 2004 and 1st November 2005, there were 947 political packages from Parliament House.

1.
How many of these were for the 7pm ABC TV News?

2.
Of these, how many used a direct quote from a member of parliament. Of that number, how many were from an Australian Greens MP?
	ABC
	30/08/06

	243
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Opinion Polls – lack of balance

I refer to two opinion polls SBS ran on the World News Australia section of your website (attached). 

SBS Quiz on occasion of 10th Anniversary of Mr Howard as Prime Minister

On Friday March 3 you had a story about the Prime Minister’s 10th anniversary. And there was an associated poll which asked about the PM’s contribution to Australia, and there were four options:

a) The PM has been good for Australia 

b) The PM has been bad for Australia 

c) Don’t know or don’t care and 

d) the PM has made Australians live in a climate of fear.

SBS TV website opinion poll Budget 2006

I refer to another poll linked to this month’s  Budget. It asked “What difference will the Budget make for you?” It gave five options:

a) The tax cuts will off set the interest rate rise on my mortgage.

b) It will make no difference to me. 

c) I think small business should have got more help. 

d) I welcome funding for mental health. 

e) I dislike the way indigenous health has been ignored.

1) The Budget allocated an extra $136.7 million to indigenous health, bringing the annual total to $573 million a year. The information was easily accessible on page 24 of the Budget booklet under the headline “Strengthening Indigenous Communities”. (attached)  And the spending does not include indigenous Australians who access mainstream health care. So the total is even higher. The Government is spending $3.3 billion on indigenous programmes in 2006-2007, which is double the amount spent in the Howard government’s first year. Why did you fail to examine this material which was readily and obviously available.

But as far as SBS is concerned, it’s a case of “never let a fact stand in the way of a good story.”  Why did SBS ignore these worthy initiatives in the Budget.

This instance clearly demonstrates that SBS is too busy trying to perpetuate the myth that the Howard Government ignores indigenous Australians, while at the same time encouraging people to believe that the Howard Government has made Australians live in a climate of fear.

Why are you adopting the agenda of the far-left. At the very least why didn’t you provide an alternative question such as “Mr Howard has made Australia a more optimistic place?”

Who drafts these polls? 

Are you comfortable about this sort of bias?

How many people participated in the polls?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	244
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS Budget coverage - AAP

I refer to your Budget coverage on World News Home dated 9 May 2006 9attached). Why was it that the story posted on your web site was sourced from AAP, and didn’t even mention the investment in indigenous health?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	245
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Insight – submissions for changes to industrial relations laws

Staying with this outrageous lack of balance I refer to the attached "Call for Submission" on your Insight web site where you call for submissions regarding changes to Industrial Relations laws. Here is another example of loading the programme the left-wing way.

You invite people onto the programme who have:

a) Noticed things have changed 

b) Been dismissed or threatened with dismissal, and 

c) Have you as an employer felt free to hire more staff. 

But where was d) Have you as a worker found it easier to get a job? 
	SBS
	30/08/06

	246
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS Radio Newsroom – lack of balance

In Radio News why is there a lack of balance in the following reports:  

11 May 2006 headlined “Labor says casuals workers will lose” which appears to be just a write up of the ALP press release (attached). It makes various accusations about the government. But it does not contain any balancing comment from the government. Why not?

31 March 2006 headlined “Voters abandon Coalition over IR". (attached)  Again the source seems to be a press release from Unions New South Wales. And once again, there is no balance in terms of a response from the Government.

11 May 2006 headlined “Charitable miners docked pay” and the thrust of the story was that a mining company had used the IR changes to dock pay from workers raising money for the Beaconsfield miners (attached). Again, there was no comment from the mining company. It was all just the union.

8 March 2006 headlined “Don’t cut Qantas jobs – Unions” and again it was just a one-sided spray from the union with no comment from Qantas. I notice even the ABC managed to report both sides of the story. Both are attached.

And I monitored your web site on those days and there was no subsequent, balancing story in any of these instances.
	SBS
	23/08/06

	247
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	World View

I refer to some stories from World View. 11 March 2006 “Operation Babylift” (attached). The story begins “It has been 36 years since the Vietnam War ended.

When did the Vietnam War end?

Who checks these stories before they are published?

I refer to this line in the story’s introduction
“Vietnamese orphans growing up in White Australia.”  

Is it fair to describe Australia in the late 1970s as “white Australia”? What about indigenous Australians, Maori, Chinese, people from the Mediterranean?
	SBS
	23/08/06

	248
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	World View

Radio news on 3 May 2006 headlined “Australian killed in Iraq” (attached). In fact, three Fijians were killed and an Australian was injured. Who checks this material before it is published?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	249
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	World View

I refer to World View, about the Freeport mine in West Papua (attached). It says:

“the mine is owned by the United States.”  

The mine is 90% owned by a private American company, not “the United States”, and 10% owned by the Indonesian government, so the statement is false or at least misleading. Why was this mistake made?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	250
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	World View

Radio news from 12 May 2006 about David Hicks (attached):

“Adelaide born Mr Hicks has recently become a British citizen.”  

Has Hicks taken the oath and pledge? No. While he has won the latest stage in a legal battle, it is by no means certain that the legal process has ended, and that is complete AND he takes the oath and pledge, he’s not a citizen as such, is he?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	251
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	World View

World View of 8 March 2006 headlined “Hams (sic) rejects Al Qaeda.” (attached). It is a very pro-Hamas item which makes some dubious claims such as “how Hamas has changed in Government”, which I know from my own reading on this subject, is a highly contentious assertion.

But as if to reinforce the “good guys” impression of Hamas, World View published the same story again a full six days later on 14 March 2006 (attached). Was that so no-one who might be feeling ill-disposed towards Hamas doesn’t miss the propaganda from your reporter Nicholas Perpitch and the gentleman from the Arab League.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	252
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS – how it inflames anti-American sentiment

I asked a series of questions at the last Estimates about George Negus and his pro-Islamic, anti-American and anti-Israeli bias. I suggested that you were guilty of inflaming anti-American views, a claim you denied.

Here are some quotes from the “Dateline” guestbook (attached). 

“The US really is a juggernaut careering out of control.” 

“When will we see Bush, Cheney and Rumsfeld hauled before the ICC and tried for war crimes?” 

“After watching the program tonight I find myself coming to the conclusion that the US administration is one of the biggest perpetrators of terror on this earth. I find it distasteful that the Howard government bows to the Bush administration. I think that the US government is one of the most dangerous on earth.” 

“The evil George W. Bush empire that Australia is shamefully aligned to.” 

“America has turned into an undemocratic totalitarian regime.” 

“America is now a dictatorship and I hope you will continue to expose the truth”. 

“The White House are real terrorist and we are part of them”.

Aren’t these examples proving that your audience views your work as anti-American?
	SBS
	

	253
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	George Negus – promotion for program on Palestinian women

I refer to another example from SBS and Mr Negus.  It is a promo at the end of your Dateline program of 5 April 2006 for an upcoming programme about Palestinian women (attached):

“She had three sons killed by the Israeli military”.

The woman in question had three sons who died all right. One was killed during a shooting attack on the Jewish community of Atzmona in which he murdered five unarmed Israeli teenage boys and wounded another 17 before he was shot in self-defence. He told his mum of his intentions prior to the attack and she gave her blessing.

Her eldest was the tech guy, a designer of Kassam rockets used to attack civilians in Israel. He was killed while assembling a prototype aerial drone designed to fly over Israeli territory and drop bombs on civilian targets. It blew up and killed him.

“Martyr” number three went to meet his 72 virgins on the way to launch Kassam rockets into Israel. The rocket-laden car in which he was travelling was hit by an Israeli air strike.

And yet Mr Negus’s promo created a highly misleading impression. 
	SBS
	23/08/06

	254
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Labelling – use of the word "terrorist"

I previously asked why you changed the words of Israeli spokesmen and leaders from terrorist to militant and we got back an answer about not taking sides.

So let me ask again. 

I quoted an item “Israeli military sources said it was the shi’ite militant group Hezbollah”.

Is that what the Israeli sources said? No, they said “terrorist”. So when you publish or broadcast a statement that someone said something, you are not being accurate because Israel didn’t say that.

How many other times do you state that someone said something, when in fact they said something different? 

In your answer to question 208 from February Estimates (attached) you state that SBS will not label a group or individual as terrorists unless directly quoting individuals. Isn’t “Israeli military sources said it was the shi’ite militant group” a quote. I mean you are representing them as saying something they didn’t say.

And if biased wire agencies employ jiggery-pokery with quotation marks, why do you follow suit? Are your editorial policies dictated by wire agencies?
	SBS
	23/08/06

	255
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS News Content

On SBS TV news of February 9, 2006, Mary Kostakidis announced:

“The Palestinian militant group Hamas has held out the prospect of a two state solution and a long truce with Israel, but only if the Jewish state returns to its 1967 borders.”  

In her report, Vesna Nazor said:

“There’s talk of a truce, provided Israel withdraws from occupied land”. 

Neither of them mentioned Hamas’ other demand – that Israel allows the return of the refugees and their descendants, which would mean the end of Israel. Why?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	256
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS News Content

On SBS TV news of 29 January 2006, SBS adopted Hamas phraseology when Prue Lewarne said that Hamas “refuses to back down from armed resistance”. Why is SBS adopting the language of one side of the conflict?
	SBS
	23/08/06

	257
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Dateline 15 February 2006

In her Dateline report of 15 February 2006, on the further photos of Iraqi prisoners being abused at Abu Ghraib, why did Olivia Rousset claim:

“There have been ten government investigations into the abuse and torture of detainees in Iraq, Afghanistan and Guantanamo Bay, but no high ranking officials have been held accountable.” 

She appears to have forgotten Brigadier General Janis Karpinski, who was in charge of the jail, but was demoted in the wake of the scandal. 

Why was the only interviewee for Rousset’s report Amrit Singh of the American Civil Liberties union, a body highly critical of the US administration? Where was the balance? 
	SBS
	30/08/06

	258
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Dateline – 25 January 2006

When George Negus interviewed Shimon Peres on Dateline of 25 January 2006, why did he express his skewed opinion of Ariel Sharon, asking, 

“This man who is regarded by so many people as anything but a man of peace. A man who has been accused of murdering women and children. A man who has been seen as the butcher of Sabwa and Shatilla. What was his motivation for suddenly feeling, at this point in his life, that maybe he was an instrument of peace, not war?”
	SBS
	23/08/06

	259
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS TV News 15 March 2006
When SBS TV News of 15 March 2006, reported on Israel’s raid on the Jericho jail there were two mentions that the monitors withdrew “for safety reasons”. But why did SBS not report that the monitors felt their safety was threatened because of the continued failure by the Palestinian Authority to comply with the agreement under which they were there.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	260
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS TV News 29  March 2006
When newsreader Amrita Sheema on SBS TV of 29 March 2006, gave a rundown of the Israeli election results in which she reported the numbers of mandates won by each party in the parliament, why did she not mention the Arab parties? To the casual observer, it seemed that only Jewish parties have seats in the Israeli parliament. 
	SBS
	30/08/06

	261
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS TV News 8 April 2006
When newsreader Lee Lin Chin on SBS TV of 8 April 2006, announced:
“At least six Palestinians including a seven year old girl have been killed in an Israeli air-strike on a militant base in Gaza” 

and Vesna Nazor reported:

“Israeli aircraft targeted a car as it was leaving a militant training camp in southern Gaza. Six Palestinians were killed, including a militant commander and his seven year old daughter,”

Why did SBS create the impression that the other four Palestinians killed were civilians, whereas they were all also terrorists?
	SBS
	30/08/06

	262
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS TV News 5 April 2006
When Mary Kostakidis announced on SBS TV News of 5 April 2006:
“Israeli warplanes have launched an attack on the Gaza compound of Palestinian President Mahmoud Abbas. It was one of a series of attacks which left one Palestinian dead and nine injured, including a 6-month-old baby,"

and Ashleigh Nghiem then reported:

“Chaos on the streets of Gaza just 100 metres from the office of Palestinian President Mahmoud Abbas. Israeli warplanes launched three missiles into his compound, injuring two people and leaving a trail of destruction. The Palestinian President emerged in the West Bank to condemn the violence. ‘This escalation is inexcusable and we don't know of any reason for it besides the desire to obstruct Palestinian life and destroy our institutions,’ he says. The warplanes also had the town of Beit Lahia in northern Gaza in their sights, the raids there killing a Palestinian man and leaving seven others wounded, including this baby girl.” 

In fact, the attack on Beit Lahia was by artillery, not planes, the strikes were in response to continuous Palestinian rocket attacks on Israel from Gaza, and the shells that hit Beit Lahia were fired at a rocket launch site. Why didn’t the SBS report provide this vital context? 
	SBS
	30/08/06

	263
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	9/11 – allegations of an inside job

Why did your website publish the following (attached) on the 20 February from a viewer  – 

“Congratulations Dateline Forum readers. You are leading Australia. As many of you insisted repeatedly, 9/11 was obviously an inside job. Now we have the scientific proof.”. 

What follows is a long four page conspiracy theory about 9/11 that asserts the World Trade Centre buildings were brought down by controlled explosions set off by the Bush administration.

How can SBS claim that you are not encouraging anti-American feelings.

I note that you have conceded that you broadcast allegations of torture at Guantanamo Bay as facts rather than allegations.

Please advise when was the last time Dateline produced a programme about Iran, its nuclear programme and its threat to wipe Israel off the face of the earth? I have searched the Dateline archive going back nearly four years and can find nothing - certainly nothing recent. We get an almost weekly diatribe against the US while you ignore one of the greatest potential threats to global security.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	264
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	SBS Australian Documentaries Vietnam Nurses
I refer to content on another of your forums – "SBS Australian Documentaries. Vietnam nurses. Topic." (attached)

I apologise for the language usage here but I am quoting from some shocking material on your own web site (attached):

N.I.G.G.E.R. C.U.N.T. I love C.U.N.T. Dating Rabbit Vibrators. XXX Photo Swingers, Personal Fetish, Teen Models, Asian schoolgirls …

And another site: 

"SBS Australian Documentaries: View Topic – The Best #@%!$ Online! Find Real #@%!$ PARTNER!" (attached)

This includes free videos on what appear to be a range of pornographic topics.

Why was this material published on your website?

The content is pornographic and disgusting. Most of it is even worse than is quoted above. And it is all published on the SBS website, at the taxpayer’s expense. Please explain how this disgusting material has found its way to your web site.

This is what the Australian taxpayers are getting for their hard-earned money. Please explain how management of SBS has allowed this to happen.


	SBS
	30/08/06

	265
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	New programs – how they fit into the Charter

I have previously asked about whether SBS programmes fit the charter, or at least how they do. I have attached two new examples:

“Stripperella – Pamela Anderson provides the voice of Erotica Jones who is a stripper by night and superhero Stripperella by even later night. Back at the strip club her friend is dating a conjoined twin with a conflicting personality…” 

and on it goes.

“The mysterious geographic explorations of Jasper Morello. Set in a world of iron dirigibles and steam powered computers this gothic horror mystery tells the story of Jasper Morello, a disgraced navigator who flees his plague-ridden home on a desperate voyage to redeem himself. Animated.”

Please explain how either of these two examples fit into the SBS Charter.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	266
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Lo Scandaglio – Italian Program – 25 February 2006

I refer to a recent personal experience which highlights the left-wing bias of SBS. On 25 February 2006 I participated in a forum on the Italian program on the 10 years of the Howard Government. The 35 minute forum was conducted by Mr Umberto Martinengo. The participants were: an ALP member, a Greens member, a former ALP member, a unionist, a journalist and myself. As you can appreciate, this is not a balanced panel.

During the course of the forum I spoke twice and a short concluding remark – for no more than a few minutes at a time. When I sought to add to the debate, I was told to keep it short as others had to speak!!  In my 15 years of dealings with SBS, this was one of the worst examples of blatant political bias I have ever encountered.

Have there been complaints with Mr Martinengo in the past. If so, please provide details of what action, if any, was taken.

What action will you take in relation to this matter.

What role does the Head of Program in relation to such a matter and what action will SBS take in relation to his/her role regarding this matter.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	267
	Tabled
	Fierravanti-Wells
	Monitoring of Radio Programs

I refer to your answer to Question on notice 212 regarding the monitoring of radio programs. I note SBS Radio broadcasts 36 LOTE programs a day. Can you provide details of your programming, including details of the nature and content outline of each of the programs broadcast over a week.

You state that SBS has set up a number of mechanisms to ensure its output complies with SBS Codes of Practice and program standards. You state SBS has now approved a more formal monitoring process involving random checking of programs based on independent translations. When did this commence? How often and at what rate is the random checking occurring.
	SBS
	30/08/06

	268
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Expenditure on Legal Services

(1) What sum did the department or agency spend during 2005-2006 on external legal services (including private firms, the Australian Government Solicitor and any others). 

(2) What sum did the department or agency spend on internal legal services. 

(3) What is the department or agency's projected expenditure on legal services for 2006-2007.
	SBS
	03/08/06

	269
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Executive Coaching/Leadership Training
The following questions relate to the purchase of executive coaching and/or other leadership training services by the department/agency, broken down for each of the last four financial years.

Where available, please provide:

1. Total spending on these services.

2. The number of employees offered these services and their salary level.

3. The number of employees who have utilised these services and their salary level.

4. The names of all service providers engaged.

5. For each service purchased from a provider listed in the answer to the previous question, please provide:

a. The name and nature of the service purchased.

b. Whether the service is one-on-one or group based.

c. The number of employees who received the service.

d. The total number of hours involved for all employees.

e. The total amount spent on the service.

f. A description of the fees charged (e.g. per hour, complete package).

g. Where a service was provided at any location other than the department or agency's own premises, please provide:

i. The location used

ii. The number of employees who took part on each occasion

iii. The total number of hours involved for all employees who took part.
	SBS
	11/08/06

	270
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Expenditure on Legal Services

(1) What sum did the department or agency spend during 2005-2006 on external legal services (including private firms, the Australian Government Solicitor and any others). 

(2) What sum did the department or agency spend on internal legal services. 

(3) What is the department or agency's projected expenditure on legal services for 2006-2007.
	Net Alert
	03/08/06

	271
	Tabled
	Ludwig
	Executive Coaching/Leadership Training
The following questions relate to the purchase of executive coaching and/or other leadership training services by the department/agency, broken down for each of the last four financial years.

Where available, please provide:

1. Total spending on these services.

2. The number of employees offered these services and their salary level.

3. The number of employees who have utilised these services and their salary level.

4. The names of all service providers engaged.

5. For each service purchased from a provider listed in the answer to the previous question, please provide:

a. The name and nature of the service purchased.

b. Whether the service is one-on-one or group based.

c. The number of employees who received the service.

d. The total number of hours involved for all employees.

e. The total amount spent on the service.

f. A description of the fees charged (e.g. per hour, complete package).

g. Where a service was provided at any location other than the department or agency's own premises, please provide:

i. The location used

ii. The number of employees who took part on each occasion

iii. The total number of hours involved for all employees who took part.
	Net Alert
	03/08/06
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